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Supplementary statement of evidence of Jamie Cowan 

Introduction 

[1] My name is JAMES PATRICK COWAN (known as Jamie). 

[2] I am the Director of Wildfire Management NZ Ltd.  

[3] Since the time of writing my evidence chief, I have received further 

comment from FENZ in respect of proposed recommendations for the 

proposal.  

[4] As set out in the attached email, the recommendations listed by FENZ 

have all been recommended by me, save for the inclusion of internal 

sprinklers, and included in the proposed wildfire mitigation strategies as 

set out in my evidence. 

 
 
 
 

James Cowan 
6 November 2024 
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Attachments: scan_mawhinnm_2024-11-04-14-20-46.pdf

From: Mawhinney, Mark <mark.mawhinney@fireandemergency.nz> 
Sent: Monday, November 4, 2024 2:29:54 PM 
To: Jamie Cowan <jamie@wildfirenz.nz> 
Subject: Rocky Point Subdivision Bendigo  
  
Hi Jamie and Tim. Thanks for showing me around the site. Detailed below are my findings. 
  
As a Risk Reduction Officer for Fire and Emergency NZ, (FENZ) I carried out a site inspection of the proposed 
Rocky Point subdivision on the 30 October 2024. The following is a brief summary of what is proposed and 
recommendations from FENZ 
  
  

 The proposed development sites sit on moderate slopes within an arid manuka/kanuka scrub 
environment. 

 The Kanuka/Manuka is thickest within the gullies and has a limited understory.  Where this vegetation is 
scattered, a fire under moderate fire danger conditions may have a limited ability to spread due to this 
lack of understory. 

 The highest potential for an ignition that may cause a damaging wildfire would be from the highway 
downslope of the proposed development and the powerlines running through and below the 
development. 

 A wildfire in this environment under very high to extreme fire danger conditions could move upslope with 
serious consequences to anyone in its path. 

 There are to be two points of vehicular access/egress and the vineyards to the east can be utilised by foot 
traffic as a safety zone 
  

My understanding is that the developers are proposing the following infrastructure relevant to fire risk and wildfire 
mitigation strategies.  
  

1. Hydrant water supplies that meet the FW2 classification under NZ PAS4509. 
2. Approx 26 wildfire sprinklers in the gully’s downslope and near to the building platforms.  
3. Water storage and supply to enable ember sprinklers to operate on houses where required.  
4. All access roads will meet the FENZ width and clearance requirements. 
5. As per FENZ fire smart guidance – “preparing home landscaping” (attached), all flammable materials 

should be cleared to within 1.5m of any proposed buildings (Zone 0).  
6. Flammable vegetation should be cleared within Zone 1 (1.5 to 10M from any building) (Some manuka 

specimens can be left in this zone , however they must be well spaced (6m or more) and pruned at least 
1.5m from the ground with any dead material removed from the crown) 

7. Flammable vegetation should be thinned and pruned at least 1.5m from the ground within Zone 2 (out to 
30m from any proposed buildings) 

8. Powerlines that run though the centre of the development and a portion of the line that leads down to the 
highway pose a risk of starting a wildfire. These should be either designed to not start fires in high winds; 
dividers to stop lines arching, upgraded line and pole maintenance programmes. Or lines are buried. 
These and other options should be discussed with the lines company. 

9. Plantings of low flammability species to be introduced in key locations. 
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Other recommendations: 
  

1. That the developers work with CODC to support mowing and clearance of the camping area below the 
development. If the roadside area is well mown and cleared of weeds and scrub, this will help to ensure 
any fire originating in this location can be contained from jumping over the highway and up the hill in the 
proposed development. I am happy to approach CODC and highlight the risks that this reserve poses. I am 
aware that over the years, this risk has been highlighted and mitigation steps have been introduced. 

2. Future homeowners should be made aware of the risks and have the following strategies in place: 
a. Construction materials should be of low flammability particularly on the downslope side of any 

buildings. See FENZ “Wildfire Safer Housing Guide”  Protect your home from outdoor fires | Fire and 
Emergency New Zealand 

b. All residents should have a fire plan, including a household evacuation plan, Everyone needs to 
know what to do in the event of a fire. 

c. Activities that could start a fire should be managed to minimise the risk on an ignition, such as 
mowing grass on hot dry windy days. 

d. Continual management of vegetation to ensure it meets the guidelines as per the attached “fire 
Smart Documents” 

e. Internal sprinklers are recommended. These will significantly reduce the likelihood of a fire 
spreading inside a house and from the house to other properties. 
  

Summary: 
  
From my observations and what I have been told by the developer, the resource consent proposal meets all 
requirements under NZPAS:4509.  
The proposed wildfire mitigation strategies, if applied correctly, will adequately mitigate wildfire risk for this 
development.  
The developers are taking practical steps to ensure the safety of the development’s future residents. 
  
It must be acknowledged that wildfires are unpredictable. In the most extreme weather events, there is likely to be 
a greater risk to homes and residents. Where there is a failure of the proposed systems or a failure of residents to 
carry out the necessary Fire Smart standards this could also lead to increased risk to homes and residents. 
  
Regards 

  
Mark Mawhinney 
Advisor Risk Reduction 
M: - (027) 530 4590 
E: - mark.mawhinney@fireandemergency.nz 

  
Te Kei Otako (Region 5 Otago) 
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-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Notice:  This email and any attachments may contain information that may be subject to an obligation of confidence or the subject of legal privilege.  
If you received it in error:  
        1. Please let us know immediately by return email and then delete the email and your reply.   
        2. You must not use, copy or disclose any of the information contained in this email.  
There is no warranty that this email is error or virus free. 
If this is a private communication, it does not represent the views of the organisation. 
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